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Order of Business

1. PRAYER

We ask for guidance and blessing on this Council. May the true needs and wellbeing
of our communities be our concern. Help us, who serve as leaders, to remember that
all our decisions are made in the best interests of the people, culture and the
environment of the Corangamite Shire.

Amen

2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

We acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land on which we are meeting, and
pay our respects to their Elders, past and present.

3. APOLOGIES
4. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
RECOMMENDATION

That the Minutes of the Corangamite Shire Ordinary Council meeting held
on Tuesday 15 September 2020 be confirmed.

6. DEPUTATIONS & PRESENTATIONS
7. OFFICERS’ REPORTS

ANDREW MASON
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DISCLAIMER

The advice and information contained herein is given by the Council without liability or responsibility for its
accuracy. Before placing any reliance on this advice or information, a written enquiry should be made to the
Council giving the entire reason or reasons for seeking the advice or information and how it is proposed to be
used.

Council meetings are livestreamed on the Internet to provide members of the community greater access to
Council decisions and debate. A recording of the meeting will be available on Council’s website after the
meeting (usually within 48 hours). Visitors in the public gallery may be filmed and/or recorded during the
meeting. By attending the meeting, it is assumed consent is given in the event that this occurs.
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DEPUTATIONS & PRESENTATIONS

Members of the public may address Council under this section of the agenda during
a meeting of Council if:

a) The person is addressing the Council in respect to a submission on an issue under
Section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989, or

b) The person has requested that they address Council on an issue and the Mayor
has agreed that they be heard.

Requests to address Council must be received by 5.00 pm on the day prior to the
scheduled meeting of Council.

Presentations made to Council in this section of the agenda may not exceed five
minutes in length, although Councillors may ask questions following each
presentation. If a presentation exceeds five minutes in length, the Mayor may request
that the presenter ceases to address Council immediately.
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7. OFFICERS' REPORTS
7.1 2019-2020 Financial Statements and Performance Report

Author: Adam Taylor, Manager Finance

Previous Council Reference: Nil

Declaration
Chief Executive Officer — Andrew Mason

In providing this advice to Council as the Chief Executive Officer, | have no interests to
disclose in this report.

Author - Adam Taylor

In providing this advice to Council as the Manager Finance, | have no interests to disclose in
this report.

Summary

This report proposes that Council give in-principle approval to the Financial Statements and
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020 and authorise two Councillors to
certify the statements.

The financial result for the year ended 30 June 2020 was a $378,000 surplus which was lower
than our adopted budget surplus of $1.36 million. All key financial indicators remain generally
strong.

Introduction

Pursuant to Section 132 (2) and (5) of the Local Government Act 1989, Council is required to
give ‘in-principle’ approval of the 2019-2020 Financial Statements and Performance
Statement and authorise two Councillors to approve the statements in their final form. The
statements must be in the form and contain the content specified by the Local Government
(Finance and Reporting) Regulations 20174.

Council must not submit the statements to its Auditor or the Minister unless it has passed a
resolution giving its in-principle approval to the statements. Legislation also recognises that
further changes may be made to the statements, and therefore Council must authorise two
Councillors to certify the Financial Statements and the Performance Statement in their final
form after any changes recommended or agreed to by the auditor have been made.

Issues

The Victorian Auditor General’s Office (VAGO) is responsible under the Audit Act 1994 for the
audit of Council’s Financial Statements and Performance Statement. Auditors from McLaren
Hunt, agents on behalf of VAGO, completed a large portion of their audit offsite between 6
and 7 August 2020
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For 2019-2020, an operating surplus of $378,000 was achieved compared to an adopted
budgeted surplus of $1.36 million. Explanatory commentary on major variations against
Council’s 2019-2020 Adopted Budget are included in the notes to the Financial Statements
(note 1.1) and provided below.

Income Variance Comment
Favourable /
(Unfavourable)
User Fees ($228,000) | Reduction in landfill fees ($365,000) due to loss of contract
offset by increase in building fee income ($97,000).
Grants - $1,504,000 | Unbudgeted grants received for Working for Victoria
operating program ($460,000) and natural disaster funding carried

forward from previous year ($966,000).

Grants - capital

($163,000)

Payments not received for carry forward projects ($588,000)
offset against additional funding received for Roads to
Recovery ($457,000).

Contributions -
Monetary

$465,000

Contributions from Berrybank Windfarm received ($479,000)
that were not included as monetary contributions in Budget.

Other income

$743,000

Reassessment of useful life of landfill assets ($422,000) and
additional investment income ($210,000).

Total

$2,321,000

Table 1: Major variances to adopted budget - Income

Expense

Variance
Favourable /
(Unfavourable)

Comment

of use assets

Employee Costs $323,000 | Savings made in employee costs due to multiple unfilled
positions throughout financial year.

Materials and $426,000 | Budgeted landfill projects not completed at year end to

services be carried into 2020-2021 year ($463,000).

Depreciation ($232,000) | Additional depreciation on roads ($492,000), buildings
($495,000) and plant and equipment ($229,000) offset by
lower depreciation on landfill cells ($1,071,000).

Ammortisation — ($229,000) | Landfill airspace amortisation not budgeted ($229,000).

Intangible assets

Amortisation — Right ($250,000) | Adoption of AASB16 Leases resulted in lease expenditure

which was not budgeted ($250,000).

Net loss on disposal
of property,
infrastructure, plant
and equipment

($3,028,000)

Proceeds from the disposal of Light Fleet, Heavy Plant
and Buildings ($240,000) offset by the written-down value
of plant and infrastructure assets disposed ($3,267,000).
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Fair value ($201,000) | Updated CPI and discount rates have increased the Net

adjustments Present Value for rehabilitation of the Naroghid landfill
site.

Total ($3,191,000)

Table 2: Major variances to adopted budget - Expenses

The Performance Statement is attached and includes sustainable capacity indicators, service
performance indicators from across the organisation and financial performance indicators as
prescribed in the Local Government (Finance and Reporting) Regulations 2014. The
Performance Statement includes the actual results achieved in 2019-2020 for all of the
prescribed indicators, as well as, the forecast estimates for the years 2021-2024 for each of
the performance indicators.

Key financial performance indicators for 2019-2020 are summarised below.

Performance Actual
Forecast Performance
Measure Performance
Ratio 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024
Working capital 603% 350% 389% 331% 308% 278%
Indebtedness 12% 41% 13% 13% 13% 13%
Asset renewal 80% 93% 115% 110% 97% 137%

Table 3: Local Government Performance Report Framework - Key financial indictors

Indebtedness has increased due to the change in accounting standard requiring the
recognition of future lease payments. The asset renewal was below 100% due to a number
of large-scale multi-year projects that are still in progress at the end of the year, the average
will remain above 100% over the forecast period.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1989, Local Government (Finance and Reporting) Regulations 20714
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have many adjustments for the application of new accounting
standards which include:

e AASB 16 Leases which requires all future lease payments to be disclosed on the
balance sheet, and

o AASB 15 Revenue with Contracts from Customers which requires certain revenue
items to be accrued until performance obligation have been satisfied.

Policy and Legislative Context
The report is in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and
supports the commitments in the Council Plan 2017-2021 that:

We are committed to ensuring the ethical behaviour of Councillors and staff, maintaining
good governance and remaining financially sustainable.

Council will make budgetary decisions that ensures Council remains in a strong financial
position now and into the future.

Council will deliver value for money by ensuring that services are required and delivered
efficiently and sustainably.
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Internal / External Consultation

The various statements are subject to audit by the Victorian Auditor General’s Office. A draft
set of statements was referred to a meeting of Council’s Audit Committee on 17 September
2020. Auditors from McLaren Hunt, as agents for VAGO, were in attendance to discuss the
statements and their observations from the audit. The Audit Committee has recommended
that Council give in-principle approval to the statements.

Once the final statements have been prepared and certified by the nominated Councillors,
they will form part of Council’s Annual Report which will be forwarded to the Minister by 30
November 2020 and be made available on Council’s website and at Council offices. Council
will consider the annual report on 20 October 2020.

Financial and Resource Implications
There are no direct financial and resource consequences as a result of this report.

Options

In-principle approval of the statements by Council is required to ensure that Council meets
the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989. Council may choose which Councillors
are authorised to certify them.

Conclusion

In-principle approval of the statements at this meeting, and authorisation of two Councillors
to certify the final copy, will ensure that they are lodged with the Minister within the required
timeframe. Council practice has been to nominate the members of the Audit Committee to
certify the statements.

RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Local/ Government Act 1989, Council
gives in-principle approval to the Financial Statements and
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020.

2. Pursuant to Section 132(5) of the Local Government Act 1989, Council
authorises Councillors Durant and Brown to certify the 2019-2020
Financial Statements and Performance Statement in their final form
after any changes recommended or agreed to by the auditors have
been made.

Attachments
1. 2019-2020 Financial Statements
2. 2019-2020 Performance Statement
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Corangamite Shire Council
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
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Corangamite Shire Council
Financial Report
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Corangamite Shire Council
2019-2020 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the Local Govemment
{Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 , the Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Adam Taylor
Principal Accounting Officer

Date : 20-Sep-20

Camperdonn, Victoria

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Corangamite Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2020
and the financial position of the Counc as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading orinaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Coundl and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to cerify the financial statements in
their final form.

Helen Durant

Councillor

Date : 29-Sep-20
Camperdown, Victoria

Lesley Brown

Councillor

Date : 29-Sep-20
Camperdown, Victoria

Andrew Mason

Chief Executive Officer

Date : 29-Sep-20
Camperdown, Victoria
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Corangamite Shire Council
2019-2020 Financial Report

<INSERT VAGO REPORT - PAGE 1>
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Corangamite Shire Council

2019-2020 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2019
$000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges a1 22,085 21609
Statutory fees and fines 32 474 502
Userfees 3.3 5,786 6,193
Grants - operating 34 12,911 21,091
Grants - capital 34 4,200 4217
Contributions - monetary 35 T04 183
Contributions - non monetary 35 - 1,267
Share of net profits of associates and joint ventures 6.2 35 28
Other income a7 1,603 1754
Total income 47,809 56,844
Expenses
Employee costs 41 (14,817) (14,823)
Materials and services 42 (12,629) (13,062)
Depredation 43 (13,088) (12.923)
Amortisation - intangible assets 44 (229) -
Amortisation - right of use assets 45 (250) -
Bad and doublful debts 45 (13) (104)
Met loss on disposal of property, infrastucture, plant and equipment 38 (3,028) (4,584)
Borrowing costs - -
Finance costs - leases 47 (99) -
Fair value adjustments 55 (201) (204)
Other expenses 48 (3,077) (3,932)
Total expenses (47,431) (49,632)
Surplusl{deficit) for the year 378 7212
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 61 26,970 (484)
Total comprehensive result 27,347 6,728
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Corangamite Shire Council

2019-2020 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2019
$000 $'000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 5,586 2291
Trade and other receivables 51 2527 3,766
Otherfinancial assets 5.1 33649 31,038
Inventories 5.2 47 65
Other assets 5.2 647 70
Total current assets 42 456 38,130
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 5.1 14 24
Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidiaries 6.2 328 293
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 480,491 455,249
Right-of-use assets 58 6,232 -
Intangible assets 5.2 1,335 67
Total non-current assets 488,400 455,633
Total assets 530,856 493,763
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5.3 3155 2,11
Trust funds and depasits 5.3 245 226
Provisions 55 iote 4,000
Unearned Revenue 5.4 4,634 -
Lease liabilities 5.8 180 -
Total current liabilities 12,130 6,337
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 5.5 6,051 3,759
Lease liabilities 5.8 6,161 -
Total non-current liabilities 12,212 3,759
Total liabilities 24 341 10,096
Net assets 506,515 483,667
Equity
Accumulated surplus 176,273 185,223
Reserves 9.1 330,242 208 444
Total Equity 506,515 483,667
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Corangamite Shire Council

2019-2020 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Note Total Surpl Resen
2020 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 483 667 185,223 290,264 8,180
Impact of change in accounting policy -AASE 15 Revenue 10
from Contracts with Customers (4,500) (4,500) - -
Adjusted Opening balance 479167 180,723 290,264 8,180
Sumplus/(deficit) for the year 378 378 - -
Met asset revaluation increment/{decrement) 6.1 26,970 - 26,970 -
Transfers to other reserves 91 - (5,070) - 5,070
Transfers from cther reserves 9.1 - 241 - (241)
27,347 (4,450) 26,970 4,828

Balance at end of the financial year 506,514 176,273 317,234 13,008

Accumulated Revaluation Other

Total Surpl Reser

2019 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 476,939 184,171 290,748 2020
Sumlus/{deficit) for the year 7212 7,212 - -
Met asset revaluation increment/{decrement) 6.1 (484) - (484) -
Transfers to other reserves 91 - (6,262) - 6,262
Transfers from cther reserves 9.1 - 102 - (102)
Balance at end of the financial year 483,667 185,223 290,264 8,180
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Corangamite Shire Council
2019-2020 Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
Inflows! Inflows/
(Qutflows) (Outflows)
Note $000 £°000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and chamges 22122 21,609
Statutory fees and fines 474 502
User fees 7428 4,959
Grants - operating 12,904 21091
Grants - capital 4,200 4,17
Contributions - monetary T04 183
Interest received 803 579
Reimbursement - 123
Trust funds and deposits taken 2773 -
Other receipts 470 413
Net GET refund/(payment) (50) 172
Employee costs (14,780) (14,679)
Materials and sevices (11,015) (14,651)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (2754) (79
Fire service property levy - 69
Other payments (3,038) (3,185)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 9.2 20241 21,323
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 (14,303) (12,075)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 239 440
Payments for investments (24,650) (12,000
Proceeds from sale of investments 21,999 -
Proceeds from repayments of loans and advances 9 63
Net cash provided byl/(used in) investing activities (16,706) (23,572)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid - lease liability (98) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (142) -
Net cash provided byl/(used in) financing activities (240) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,285 (2,249)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2291 4,540
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5,586 2,291
Financing arrangements 56
Restrictions on cash assets 51
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Corangamite Shire Council

2019-2020 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
2020 2019
§000 $000
Property
Land 335 -
Total land 335 -
Buildings 1,261 201
Heritage buildings 254 176
Total buildings 1,515 a7
Total property 1,850 377
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,858 1,105
Fixtures, fittings and furniture - 12
Computers and telecommunications 1 278
Total plant and equipment 1,988 1,395
Infrastructure
Roads 8,426 6,298
Bridges 458 1,862
Footpaths and cycleways 410 189
Drainage 12 86
Recreational, leisure and community faciities 261 95
Parks, open space and streelscapes 451 285
Kerb and channel 207 284
Retaining walls and small culverts 80 92
Waste management 158 1,113
Total infrastructure 10,464 10,304
Total capital works expenditure 14,303 12,076
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 2,105 1,863
Asset renewal expenditure 10,078 9,808
Asset upgrade expenditure 2120 405
Total capital works expenditure 14,303 12,076
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Corangamite Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019-2020 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
OVERVIEW

Introduction

Statement of compliance

The Corangamite Shire Council was established by an Order of the Govemor in Council on 23 September 1994 and is a body
corporate.
The Counci's main office islocated at 181 Manifold Street, Camperdown, Victoria 3260.

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these
financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accourting Standards (AAS), other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1888, and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the camying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from cther sources. The estimates and associated judgementsare based on professional judgement derived from
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
fromthese estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have signficant effects
on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and eguipment (refer to Note 6.1)

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and eguipment (refer to Note 6.1)

- the determination of employee provisions {refer to Note 5.5)

- the determination of landfil provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

- the determination of airspace assets (referto Note 5.2)

- the determination of whether performance obligations are suffidently specific so as to determine whether an arrangement is within
the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058 income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)

- the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases , of the lease term, the estimation of the discount rate when not implicit in
the lease and whether an arrangement is in substance shor-tem or low value (refer to Note 5.8)

- other areas requinng judgements

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative
figures have been amended to accord with cument presentation (except where transitional reguirements of AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers , AASE 16 Leases and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Frofit Entities do not require restatement of
comparatives underthe modified retrospective approach adopted by the Council), and disclosure has been made of any material
changes to comparatives.

(b) Rounding
Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. Figures in the financial
statements may not equate due to rounding.
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Corangamite Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019-2020 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note 1 Performance against budget

The performance against budget notes compare Councifs financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The Local
Govemment (Planning and Reporting) Reguations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Counci has adopted a materiality threshold of the
lower of 10 percent and at keast $100,000 where further explanation is ted. Explanations have not been provided for vaniations below the maleriality
tfireshold unless the variance is considered o be matenal because of its nature.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1989 and the Local Govemment {Planning and Reporting) Reguiations

014,
1.1 lncome and expenditure
Budget Actual Variance Variance
2020 2020 2020 2020
§000 §'000 §'000 % Ref
Income
Rates and charges 22034 2005 61 0%
Statutory fees and fines 443 474 kil 7%
User kes 6014 5786 (228) 4% 1
Grants - operating 11407 12,911 1,504 13% 2
Grants - capital 4363 4200 (163) 4% 3
Contrbutions - monetary 239 704 485 195% 4
Share of net profits/{losses) of associates and joint ventures - 35 » 100%
Cther income B0 1,603 743 &% 5
Total income 45360 47 80% 2448 5%
Expenses
Employee costs (15,140) (14,817) 323 2% 6
Materals and services (13/055) (12829) 426 3% 7
Depreciation (12858) (13,088) (232) 2% 8
Amorfisation - Intangible assets - (229) (229) 100% 9
Amoriisation - Right of use assets - (250) (250) 100% 10
Bad and doubtful debts (3) (13) (10) UTY%
Met loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment - (3,028) (3,028 100% 11
Finance costs - Leases - (99) (99) 100%
Fair value adjustments - (201) (201) 100% 12
Cther expenses (28341) (3,077) (138) 5%
Total expenses (43,995) (47 431) (3435 8%
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,365 78 (987) -T2%
Other comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation i t/{d t) 10,000 26,970 (16,970) SA70% 13

Total comprehensive result 11365 27 47 (15,982 -141%

Page 18



AGENDA - MEETING OF COUNCIL 29 SEPTEMBER 2020

-

CORANGAMITE
SHIRE

Corangamite Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019-2020 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
{i) Explanation of material variati
Variance Ref Itern Explanation
1 Userf Reduction in landfil fees ($365,000) due to boss of confract offeet by increase in building fes
seriess income {$57,000).
) Unbudgeted grants received for Working for \ictoria program ($480,000) and natural disaster
2 Grants - operaling funding camied forward from previous year ($966,000)
3 Grans - captal Payments notrecenved for carry forward projects ($588,000) offset against addifonal funding
received for Roads to Recovery ($457,000)
) Contributions from Bemrybank Windfarm recenved ($479,000) that were not included as
4 Contributions - monetary monetary contributions in Budget.
) Reassessment of useful life of landfil assets ($422,000) and additional investment income
5 Cther income
($210,000).
6 Employee costs Savings made in empioyee costs due to multiple unfiled posifions hroughout financial year.
7 Materials and senvices Budgeted landfill projects not completed at year end to be camied into 2020-2021 year
(8463.000)
8 o it Additional depreciafion on roads ($492,000), buikdings ($495,000) and plant and equipment
eredaian ($22%000) offset by lower depreciation on landfil cells ($1,071,000)
] Amortisation - Infangitle assets Landfil arspace amortisation not budgeted (§229,000).
10 Amorfisation - Right of use assets  Adoption of AASB16 Leases resulted inlease expenditure which was not budgeled ($250,000).
1" Net loss on disposal of property, Proceeds from the disposal of Light Fleet, Heavy Plant and Buildings ($240,000) offset by the
infrastructure, plant and equipment  writter-down value ofplant and infastruchure assets disposed (§3,267,000).
12 Fair value adjusiments Updated CPl and disoount rates have increased the Net Present Value for rehabditation of the

Maroghid landfill site.
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1.2 Capital works
Budget Actual Variance Variance
2020 2020
$'000 §'000 $'000 % Ref

Property
Land - 335 335 100% 1
Land improvements - - - 100%
Total land - 335 335 100%
Buildings 1401 1,261 (140) -10% 2
Heritage buildings - 254 254 100% 3
Total buildings 1401 1,515 114 8%
Total property 1,401 1,850 449 32%
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,528 1,858 329 1% 4
Computers and telecommunications 142 131 (1) 8%
Total plant and equipment 1671 1,988 37 19%
Infrastructure
Roads 8239 8,426 187 2% 5
Bridges 610 458 (152) 5% 6
Footpaths and cycleways 208 410 204 9% 7
Drainage 250 12 (238) -85% B
Recreational, leisure and community facilities - 261 261 100% 9
Parks, open space and streetscapes 1802 451 (1,351) -75% 10
Kerb and channel 233 207 (26) 1%
Retaining walls and small culverts - 80 80 100%
Waste management 295 159 (136) -46% 11
Artworks 50 - (50) -100%
Total infrastructure 11,685 10,464 (1,221) -10%
Total capital works expenditure 14,757 14,303 (454) -3%
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 2503 2105 (398) -16%
Asset renewal expenditure 9489 10,078 589 6%
Asset upgrade expenditure 2765 2120 (645) -23%
Total capital works expenditure 14,757 14,303 (454) -3%

(i) Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref Item Explanation
1 Land An opportunity to purchase the land on which the Timboon transfer station operates was
made available during the year. This was not apart of the original budget.
2 Buildings §254,000 of works completed were camied forward from the previous year. $430,000 of
9 budgeted work carried forward to 2020-2021
3 Heritage buildings All expenditure relates to projects carried forward from the previous year.
4 Plant, machinery and equipment Purchase of one piece of equipment was camied forward from the previous year ($490,000)

offset against savings achieved in light fleet ($177,000)

Some purchases have been transferred to operating expenses as they were not able to be
5 Roads recognised as assets ($321,000). Projects cared forward from the prior year ($464,000) and
projects carried forward to future years ($777,000)
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6 Bridges The unspent funds of $238,000 will all be carried forward to complete in the 2020-2021 year
7 Footpaths and cycleways §213,000 relates to carry forward projects from the prior year
8 Drainage The unspent funds of $238,000 will all be carried forward to complete in the 2020-2021 year
9 Recraalicnal, lefsura and communlty The actual spend relates to camy forward projects from the previous year $261,000

fadlities

Parks, open space and streetscapes

Waste management

The majority of the budget was for Twelve Apostles trail ($1.48M) and Deminallum
streetscape ($200,000) which have both only partially been completed and carried forward
to future years.

The $285,000 budget was for a new office and sheds at landfill site which will be capitalised
as buildings when completed. The actual spend of $158,000 was the amount spent on cell
construction which was not budgeted as capital.
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activities through the following directorates.

2 (a) Executive
The Chief Executive's Office works closely with Council, advocating on behalf of the Shire on issues of community
impertance and ensuring the Shire's business affairs are open and accessible.

Coroprate and Community Services
The Corporate and Community Services directorate is responsible for disabled, aged and children's services,
finance, human resources, risk management, information services, rating and contract coordination.

Sustainable Development
The Sustainable Development directorate is responsible for public safety and amenity, building and planning,
strategic planning and environment and ecenomic development and tourism.

Works and Services

The Works and Services directorate is responsible for recreation, infrastructure works and services and asset
planning.
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Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program
2 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Grants included

Income Expenses  Surplus/(Deficit) in income Total Assets
2020 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Executive 1 (873) (872) - B
Corporate and Community Services 33,947 (22,319) 11,628 11,691 43,200
Sustainable Development 4,008 (9,864) (5,856) 376 9,640
Works and Services 9,728 (14,331) (4,603) 4,954 478,015
Total 47,684 (47,387) 297 17,021 530,856

Income Expenses  Surplus/(Deficit) Gr:::ti::lc;dad Total Assets
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Executive 1 (873) (872) - -
Corporate and Community Services 42,005 (27,447) 14,648 15,653 38,888
Sustainable Development 4,300 (8,554) (4,254) 525 895
Works and Services 10,448 (12,758) (2,310) 9,130 453,980
Total 56,844 (49,632) 7,212 25,308 493,763
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services 2020 s
3.1 Rates and charges $000 $000

Cauncil uses capial improved vakie as e basis of valuzion of al properfes within the muricipal distict. The capdal impraved
value of a property s its market vaue.

The valuaion base used o cdcdaie general rates far 2019-2020 was $5.243 bilion [2018-2019 $5.011 billion).

Genaral rates 8174 A6
Municipd change 1718 1677
Waste managemert charge 1456 1942
FarmiRural 10233 1003
Wacant Induskial Land rates 15 15
y rates and rake adj 58 5
Cultural and mereaonal land rates [ ]
Rewvenue in lieu of rates 28 15
Total rates and charges 2095 21608
The dale of the & I o land for raing purp in e muricipal diskrict was 1 January 2019 and fhe

valuation will be frst applied in fhe rating year commencing 1 July 2019.

Annual rates and charges are recogrized as revanuas when Council issues annual rates nofices. Supplemantary rates ae
racognised when a valuafion and [ pleted and a ¥ Bsuad

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Landiill Lavy m
Town planning feas 258
Health Registafons a2
Permits I
Infringements and costs 14
Total statutory fees and fines 502

Statutary fes and fines are recagnised a5 revenua when Sie sanica has baen pravided. fe paymentis received. ar when e
panalty has baen splied, whichaver frstacturs.

33 Userfees
Landill 2238 1519
Private Warks 540 a1
Transier stafions 95 a5
Family Day Cara LTl M2
Mabile Chid Care am 07
Sdeyards 10 14
Lacal Laws ni na
Aged & Disatility Services 726 a3
Kindargartans 03 57
Building Services 3az2 am
Other fees and charges 486 96
Total user fees 5.788 6,193

User fiaes ara recogrised as revanua af a panf in ime_ ar aver time, when {or as) e perfarmance abligaion is safsfied.
Recagnifion is based an fhe undarlying confractual temns.

3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were racaived in respact of ha fallowing -

‘Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 1nan 11.00
‘State funded grants 5210 14208
Total grants received Taz1 25308
{a) Operating Grants
-G

Finandal Assistance Grants 814 ama

Family and chidran 353 37

Aged Sanvices 832 745
Recwrent - State Government

Aged & Disabiity Servicas 136

Community haalth 2

Emvirorrmant 62

Familias and children 1.158

Maternal and child healm 89

School Crossings -

Youth Sarvices 55
Total recurrent operating grants 1228
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2020 2ms
Non-recurrent - State Government $000 $000
Community Planning 11 17
Community Services 5 1
Emiironment a1 113
Emargancy 34 59
Faciities Managamant 2 184
Natwral Disaster 968 4788
Recreaion Pragcts 3 24
Recyding Grant - 12
Ruwral Cauncils Transfarmatan Program - 4595
Wirks & Servicas M anagemant a0 105
Warking For Viclaria 458 -
Youwh 8 7
Total non-recurrent op erafing grants T 1483 aEe
Total operating grants 12911 2109
{b) C apital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads fo recavery 1707 1,585
Total recurrent capital grants 1707 1,585
™ -G
Roads fo recavary 579 ]
Buidings - 54
Family and chidran - 24
Nen-recument - State Government
Bridges 500 1,050
Buidings - a2
Roads 1054 1.279
Cammunity Planning - E]
Emvirormmant 33 kL
Parks and Gardans - 7
Public Conveniancas 125
Camperdown Theatre 64
Waste Management 137 60
Tatal non-recurrent capital grants 249 1832
Total capital grants 200 127
{c} Unspent grants received on condifion that they be spentin a spedific manner
Operating
Balanca at start of yaar 4560 138
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date a1g 4560
Recaived in priar years and spant during fhe financial yaar {149) {134)
Baanca at year end 5247 450
Capital
Balance at start of year -
Recaived during e fnancial year and remained unspent at balance date 842
Recaivad in priar years and spant during fhe financial yaar -
[LF]

Balance at year end

Grant income is recognised at e paintin Sme when the counci saisfies its pafamanca abligaions as specified in the

undarlying agreament.

3.5 Contribu tions
Monetary
Cammunify Sarices 63 100
Community Planning 38
Canfribufions - Special Charge Schema 18
Cutural Development 50
Economic Davalpment 14
Environment kL 5
Environment and Emergency Sanicas 2 -
Enviranmental Healh g 2
Halls 180 a
Killara / Thaatre Complax. 13
Recmalion Resarves 80
Sladiums 42
Streetscapes 50
“fauh 20 -
‘Other manatary confibufians a9 1%
Total monetary contributions T04 183
Canbributions of non monetary racsived in relation ko the lollowing assel classes.
Land - Maunt Noarat 1.267
Total non-manetary contributions 1267
Total contributions T04 1,450

Manetary and non monetary comtribufions are recognised as revenue when Council abfains confral over the confributed assef.
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2020 2ms
$000 $000
1.6 Net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure. plant and equipment

Proceeds of sde 239 440

‘Written down vaue of assats depasad {3.267) {5.024)

Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, i . plant and equy (3.028) (4584}

The profitar lass an sale of an assetis determined when canfrol of the assethas passed f the buyer.

3.7 Otherincome

Interest’ 11 579

Reassessmant of usatul lils of waste assets’ 422 -

Fual Tax Cradis 13

Assats recognised for e firstme - land recognised as confrolled -

Insuranca reimbursamant 8

Infarest on rdes Lk

Faas - Funding FSPL Colection 45

Legal costs recoverad 33

Sundry Incama 50

Total other income 1603

"nterest is recognised asit is earned.
‘Managamenlreassessad fhe rermaining airspace in canstructed calls resuling in a $422.000 nef cradit.

MNote 4 The cost of defvering services
4.1 (a} Employee costs

‘Wages and Salaries 11,249
Annualleave and long sanice laave 1552
Superanuation 1,37
‘Warkcaver k]
Emplayes Banefits 115
Fringa Banafits Tax 187
Total employee costs 14823
{b) Super annuation
Council made confributions % e falowing funds
Defined benefit fund
Emplayer canfi toLocal i B ion Fund (Vision Super) 148 150
T a0
Emplayer confribufions payable atreparfing date. - 1
Agcumulation funds
Emgloyer i folocal i p ion Fund (Vision Super) 968 1Lma
Emplayer confribufions - afer funds 582 LiL]
1.550 1.514
Emplayer canfribufions payabla atreparfing data - [
Refer to note 9.3 for further infarmafion rdaiing fo Council's suparannuafon abligafans.
4.2 Materials and sarvices
Confacts 7522 7899
Intarnal Recaverias 2790 193
Flaat Costs 1223 1330
tiifes 513 46
Telephane and nternat 296 29
i ic i i 15 108
Printing and Stasanary a7 76
Pastage I 51
Bank Charges 51 50
Total materials and services 12629 11062
4.3 Depreciation
Property 1505 1.508
Plant and equipment 1,449 1,401
Infrastructure 10,134 10014
Total depreciation 13,088 12923
Rador to nate 6 1 for a mare datailbd iglion and isation chargas and ingr policy:
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2020
$000
4.4 Amortisation - Intangible assets
Landiill Airspace 229
Total Amortisation - Intangible assets 229
4.5 Amortisation - Right of use assets
Property 148
Plant and equipment 102
Total Amortisation - Right of use assats 250
4.5 Bad and doubtful debts
Dther debiors 13
Total bad and doub fful debts 13
Movement in provision s for doubtful debts
Balance at e beginning of e yaar 118
Mew provisions recognised during the year 13
Baanca at and of year m

2018
5000

104
104

17
101
18

Provigion for doub®ul dabt i racognised based on an axpacted cradt loss modal. This modal considers both historic and

farward looking i in ining the leval of i

4.7 Finance Costs - Leases

Intarast - Lease Liabilifes a9
Tatal finance costs 98

48 Other expenses

Cauncil Confibufans 1438
Deracagnion of assais

Inzuranca 618
Councillor Allowancas 213
Adveriising 188
Rent Rakes and Charges n
Legal Casts 255
“ictarian Audifor Genaral Exarnd Audif Expensas 50
Internal AuditExpansas 45
Meals and Accommadatan 47
Unreaised loss on invesments 40
Levias 21
Other expenses 126
Total ather expenses 3477

MNaote 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash an hand 2
Cash & bank 5584
Total cash and cash equivalents 5,586
{b) Other financial assets

Tarm depasits - currant 28,540
Ecanamic Development Loans 15
Managed Funds- \ictodan Funds Management Carparafion 5094
Tatal ather financial assets 33548
Total financial assets 0235

1.283

LA
1

1239
221

31.000

3a
31038
R

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subjectto exernd resricions hat limit amounts available for discretionaryuse. These

include

- Trustfunds and depasits {Note 5.3) 245
Total restricted funds

Tatal unresticled cash and cash aquivalents 5341
Intanded allocations

Alough notexternally restricied e fallowing amounts have been allacated for specific future puposes by Counil:
- Dpan spaca developer cantibufions 28

- Trustfunds and depasits 245

- Grants recaived butnot acquitied 5217
Total funds subjectio ntended dlocaions 5497

28
226
2065

43
26
4550
4829

Cash and cash equivalents nclude cash on hand. depasits & call. and ofer highly liquid investments with ariginal maturifes of

90 days o less. nef of oufstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financid assets are valued at fair value. atbalance date Term deposits are measured at original cost Any urreaiised

gains and lossasonhokdings at balanca daie are recognisad as eifher a revenus or expansa.
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2020 2019

(c) Trade and other receivables §°000 §000
Current
Statutory receivables

Rates debtors 916 943

Net GST Recevable 237 187
Non statutory receivables

Loans and ad to ity org i 2 k]

Other debtors 1,504 2,745

Provision for doubtful debis - other debtors (132) (118)
Total current trade and other receivables 2527 3,766
Non-current
Statutory receivables

Special rate scheme 14 22
Non statutory receivables

Loans and o ity org - 2

Total non-current trade and other receivables 14 24
Total trade and other receivables 2,541 3,790

Short term receivables are carried at invoice ameunt. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an

(d) Ageing of Receivables

comblae el Y

The ageing of the Council's trade and other
Curment (not yet due)

Past due by up to 30 days

Past due between 31 and 180 days

Past due between 181 and 365 days

Past due by more than 1 year

] statutory

) that are not impai

thas d. Long tem ivables are camied at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Total trade and other receivables

was:
1,229 2,625
16 3
70 3
3 3
188 121
1,508 2,754

(e) Ageing of individually

p
At balance date, other deblors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $131,559 (2019: §118,136) were impaired. The
amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $131,559 (2019: $118,136). They individually have been impaired as a result of

their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on

payment arangements.

The ageing of recewables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:
Current (not yet due)

Past due by up to 30 days

Past due between 31 and 180 days

Past due between 181 and 365 days

Past due by more than 1 year

132

118

Total trade & other receivables

132

118
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5.2 Non-financial assets 2020 2019
(a) Inventories $000 000
Inveniodies hald for distribution K] 53
Inveniories held for sale 11 11
Total inventories a1 65
[ ies held for distribution are d at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service polential. All other inventories, inchuding land held for sale,
are measured at he lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inveniories are acquired for no cost or nominal i jon, they are al current

replacement cost al the date of acquisition.

(b} Other assets

Prapayments in 358
Accrued income 269 612
Total other assets 647 970

(¢) Intangible assets

Landill air space 1335 [
Total intangible assets 1.335 &7
Landfill
$000
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2019 &7
Addifons 2050
Reassessment of usefl ke {554}
Balanoa at 1.July 2020 1.563
isation and impai
Balance at 1 July 2019 -
Amprtisation expense 2%
Balance at 1 July 2020 229
Net book value at 30 June 2019 &7
et book value at 30 June 202) 1335
Landfll airspace intangible assets are d as th i Al capacity is d. of fhe remaining useful ves and amorisation method are
reviewed at least annually, and adj e wih iate. During he year achange in estimale was made (refer Note 5.5)
2020 ikl
5.3 Payables 000 $000
(a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables 2520 1489
Accrued expances 635 522
Total trade and other payables 3155 211
(b} Trust funds and deposits
Refundable deposits 42 48
Fire services levy % 9
Amounis heldin tust 107 108
Total trust funds and deposits 245 226
5.4 Uneamed income
Contribuions receivedin atance 1224 -
Granis received in advance - operafing KL 0]
Total unearned income 45634
Amounts received as deposits and amounts controlled by Counci are sed as trust funds unti they tumed, n it e
purpose of e receipt, of fodeited. Trust funds that are foreited, resulfing in coundl gaining controd of the funds, are 1o be recognised 25 revenue at the time of

Purpose and nature of items

Refundable deposits - Deposils are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of creumstances, incuding in mlafion to bullding works, tender deposits,
contract deposits and the use of civic fxilifes

Fire Senvice Levy - Councilis the collecion agent for fire sesvices levy on behatf of the Stale Govemment. Cound remits amounts received on a quariedy basis.
Amounts discosed here will be remitted to the state govemment in line with that process.
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5.5 Provisions
Employes Landfill Tetal
restoration
2020 $'000 $°000 § 000
Balance at baginning of e financial year 423 3,522 7,750
Addifonal provisions 1956 2,050 4,006
Ampunis used {1,701) - {1,701}
Change in the discounied amount arsing because of fime
andthe effect of any change in e discount raie 2m m (%)
Balance at e end of the financial year 4134 5,773 9,966
2019
Balance at beginning of fe inancial yaar 414 3,290 7411
Additonal provisions 1758 - 1,758
Amounts used {1583} - {1,683}
Change in the discounted amount arising because of fime
and the effect of any change in fhe discount rale # 52 73
Balance at e end of the financial year 4236 3,522 1,759
2020 019
(a) Employee provisions 000 000
Cument provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave w3 866
Rostered Days Off 123 101
Long senice leave 353 401
1388 1368
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 14 200
Long senice leave 2313 2423
2521 2832
Total current employee povisions 3918 4000
Non-current
Long senice leave 278 237
Total non-curent employes provisions 778 737
Agagregate camying amount of employee provisions:
Current 3818 4000
Hon-cument 278 237
Total aggregat jing amount of empk 47194 4237
The calculation of emph costs includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporfing date.
Wages and salaies and annusl feave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, inchudi monetary benefits, ! and d sick b ted o be whaly setfied within 12 months of the
reporfing daie ised in thy fision for empk benefits i 1 of empk sces up fo e mporting date, classifed as curent Eabiifes and
measured at their nominal values .

Liabdities fhat are not expecied o be wholly settled within 12 menfs of the reporting date are
measured at the present value of e amounts expected to be paidwhen the Eabdibes are setfied using the remuneration rate expecied fo apply at fhe fime of

setfement

Long sendce bawe

Liability for long senice leave (LSL) is ised in the provision for emplayee benefits. LSL is
current kability. Conditional LSL hat has been accrued, whes an employea is yet 1o reach a qualifying term of employment, is disciosed as anon - cusent iabiity.

ey assumpions:
- disoount rate

- oncost rate

- inflafion raie

{b) Landfil restoration
Current
Non-cusrent

Councilis obligated o restore Naroghid Landfill and Noorat Landfill site to a parficular standard. The forecast ke of fhe site is based on curent estimates of

5773
5173

has been

dinth

for sk

fits as current Rabilities,

SLis disclosed as a

d at present value. L

1.35%
11.50%

018
$o00

522

remaining capacity and the forecast raie of infil. The provision for landil

hecordingly, e estimation of th ired is

Key assumpions:

- desoount rate

-inflafion rate

-estimaied cost to rehabilitale

A%
225%
9,063

240
1.60%
7033

e present value of the expecied cost of works
o beunderiaken. The expected costof works has been estimaled based on current undestanding of wok mquimd fo reinstate the sile 1o a suilable standard.
s on the acowacy of the fosecast fming of the work, work required and related costs.
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56 Financing arrangements

The Council has e following funding amangements in place as at 30 June 2020

Bank overdraft 960 960
Credit card faclifes 1,000 1000
Total facilifes 1560 1960
Used faclites 161 £
Unusedfadlibes 1.79% 1923
5.7 Commitments

The Council has entered into e following i [ i afe not ised in e Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at heir nominal value
and presented indlusive of the GST payable.

Later than 1 Later than 2

year and not  years and not

Not later than 1 later than 2 later than 5 Later than 5
2020 year years years years Total
$o00 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000

Operating
Recycling ki ki 385 - 1138
Garbage collecion 574 583 - 1723
Green waste collecfion 451 458 - 1,354
Steet itler bing 95 9% 97 - 288
Skip bin fransfer 104 1 13 - 133
Claaning of Council buldings a7 - - 37
Recreaton facility management 107 - - 107
Banking 51 52 - 103
Home care senvices 265 bk} - - 489
Water quality monitoring 43 4 5 - 175
Landill Geosynihetcs 566 8 - - 652
Plant and Equipmeant 158 161 ke - 648
Pholcopiers 2 28 2 - B5
Total 2844 2206 2,082 - 7132
Capital
Recreational, leisure and community 314 - 4
Stestscapes 76 - 76
Total 390 - 390

Later than 1 Later than 2

year and not  years and not

Not later than 1 later than 2 later than 5 Later than 5
2019 year years years years Total
000 000 000 000 000

Operating
Recycling 384 B 384
Garbage collecion 5 - 5M
Green waste colecon 458 - 459
Steet tler bing % - 96
Skip bin wansfer 106 - 106
Maintenance of Council buildings B4 - - B4
Cleaning of Council buldings T4 T - 51
Recreaton facility management 02 403 - 1,105
Banking 52 4 - - 56
Home care senvices 224 188 193 - 605
Water quality monitoring 43 a5 143 B 2
Landill Geosynthescs 365 232 91 - 688
Plant and Equipmeant 828 150 479 - 1457
Pholecopiers n .l 81 - 118
Total 4016 1128 967 - 6411
Capital
Cubverts 5 - M5
Stestscapes 1775 - 1775
Road sealing 1047 - 1.047
Landiill and transfer staons 485 - 485
Total 3,652 - 3,652
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5.8 Leases

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018
As alesses, council classifies leases as operating o fi k based onits of whether the lease transfered significantly all of fhe dsks and
rewards incidental o ownarship of the underying asset o council.

Operafing lease payments, incheding any i rentals, were Esed a5 an expense in th fve InCome on a siraightline basis over
e lease term, except where anoer basisis e of he of he benefits derfved from the use of the leased asset The
leased asset was not recognised in e balance sheet.

Allincentives for the of anew or d ing Esed as an infegral part of hhe net
assel, imespectve of the incenfive’s nature or form or the fiming of payments.

for the use of the | d

In the event that lease incenfives were received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of i fves were zsed as a reduction of rental
over fhe lease ferm on a straight-ine basis, unless anoher e basis was v of fe ime patism in which economic benefits from fhe leased
asset were consumed.

Policy applicable after 1July 2019

Councilhas applied AASB 16 Leases using a modified approach with th dative efiect of inifal e 5 an adj o he

ing bal i lated surphus at 1 July 2019, with of e inft The council appli approach i 1o all leases
inwhich it is a lessee.
On transition to AASB 16 Leases , Council elected to apply the pracfical expedient to e of which k Th i

hat applied this pracical expedient to all of s contracts and therefore applied AASB 16 Leases only to contracts that were previcusty identified ac leases.
Alinception of acontract, all entities would assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys e right o

control the use of an identified asset or a period of ime in exchange for consideration. Toidentify whether a contract conveys the right to control he use of an
idenified &set, it is necessary to assess wheher:

-Tha canfractinvalves e use of an danffed assat:

-The custmer has tha Aght o obtain substanSaly all ofthe acanomic banefits from use of the asset firaughout fhe period of use: and

-Tha custimer has the ight fa diect e use of e asset.
This poficy is applied to confracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.
As alessee, Counci recognises anght-oFuse asset and alease labiity a1 the leage commencement date. The rightof-use asset i inftially measured at costwhich
comprises the inifial amount of the lease Eability adpusted for:

any lease payments made at o bafom fhe commencement date less any lease incentives mceived, plus

+ any iniial direct costs incurred; and

+ an esimaie of costs o dismante and e underhying asset or 1o restore the underying asset or e site on which itis located.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using fe straightine mathod from fhe commencement date to the earlier of the end of fe useful ke of the right-
ofuse assel or e end of the lease ferm. The estimated usedul Fves of ightof-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. In addiion, the right-ofuse asset is per reduced by impa ksses, if any, and adjusied for certain measurements of the leace Bability.

The lease kability & initially measured at e present value of the lease payments that are not paid at he date, g the interest rate
implicitin e lease or, if fiat rat t e readily ined, an iate i 1 Geneslly, Councl uses an appropriate incremental
bormowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments induded in the measurement of fhe lease Kabdity comprise the following:

+ Fixed payments

+ \Variable b that depend on an index or arate, inifially measured using the index or rale as at fhe commencement dale;

+ Amounts expecied o be payable under 2 meidual value guaranioe; and

- The exercise price under a purchase opfon that Cound is ibly certain 3se, b n ional il period if Councilis

reasonably cedain 1o exercise an exiension oplion, and penalies for eary termination of a k Jess Councl is riain not to tesminate eary.
‘When the lease Eabdity is d in his way, a ding ady is made fo e camying amount of the right-of-use asset, or i recorded in proft or

loss il the camying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zed.

Council has elected to apply the temposary option available under AASB 16 Leases which allows notfor-profit enfities to not measure right-olute astets at inifial
recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly below-market ferms.
Councilhas asmall number of pepparcorn leases which are used for a vadety of purposes.

Right-of-Use Assets Property Plant& Total
Equipment

§o00 yon0 §000
Balance at 1 July 2019 5800 - 5.800
Addifons - 6582 682
Amortisation charge (148) (102) (250)
Balance at 30 June 2020 5652 580 6.232
Lease Liabilities 2020
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows 000
Less than one year e
One to five years 1037
More han fve years 1717
Total undiscounied lease Eabilifies as at 30 June: 9,032

Lease kabilities includedin fe Balance Sheet al 30 June:

Current 180
HNon-cumrent 8,161
Totallease kabilties 634
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Shortterm and low value leases
Council has elected not 1o recognise rightof use assets and lease Eabiifies for short-lerm leases that have a lease term of 12 monhs or less and leases of low-

value of less han $10,000. Councl ises the k [ ialed with these leases as an expense on a staightdine basis over e lease team.
2020
Expenses relating to: 000
Short-tenm leases -
Leases of low value []
Total [
iable lease payments N

Nor-cancellable lease commitments - Short-term and low-value leases

Commi for minimum K P its for short-term and low-value leases are payable s jollows:
Payabla:

‘Within one year 1

Later than one year but not Later than fiwe years 5

Total lease commitments 1]

i. Leases dassified as operafing leases under AASB 117 Leases

Al vansition, lease Kabilities were atthe p value of e ining K at Counail's i L as at 1 July
2019 Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease Kabiity, adjusied by fhe amount of any prepaid or accred lease payments. Cound
applied this approach 1o all applicable leases.

[ e followi wihen apphing AASE 16Leases 1 leases previously classiied as P under AASE 117 Leases

- Applied asingle discount rate 1o a portiolio of leases with similar chacacted stics

- Adjusied fe rightof-use assels by fe amount of AASE 137 Provisions Confingent Liabilifies and Confingent Assels onarous contract provision immediately
before e daie of inifial asan fve fo an impa review.

- Applied fhe exemplion not to recognise right-of-use assets and Eabiities for leases with less fhan 12 monfhs of lease ferm.

- Used hindsight when determining e lease term if e contract contains opfions to extend of tenminate the lease.

. Leases previously classified as finance leases
For leases that wem classified a5 finance kases under AASB 117 Leases, the camnying amount of the right-ofuse asset and the lease Eabdity at 1 July 2019 are
determined at the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease abdity under AASE 117 Leases immediately before that date.

Council & not required 1p make any adjustments on transition o AASB 16 Leases for leases inwhich it acts as alessor, except for a subdease. Councl accountad
for its leases in accordance with AASE 16 Leases from the dae of inifial application.

Impact on financial statements

On transition o AASE 16 Leases , Council recognised an addifienal £5.8 milion of right-of use assets and $5.8 million of lease Eabilities, recognising the difference
inretained eamings.

‘When measwing lease Eabiities, Councll discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is
157%.

2019

5000

Operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 as disclosed in Councils inancial stalements 8562

Discounted using e incremental bomowing rate at 1 July 2019 (2763)

Finance lease lability recognised a5 at 30 June 2019 5800
- Reoognition exemption for:

short-ienm leases -

leases of low-value assels 16

- Extengion and farmi i ceriain o b ised -

- Residual value guaraniees -

- Lease kabilites recognised as at 1 July 2019 16
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6.1 Propedty, infrastructure, plant and equipment

S y of property, . plant and
At Fair Value Reassessment AtFair Value 30
30 June 2019 Additions Revaluation  Depreciation Disposal  of useful life Write-off Transfers June 2020
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Propery 54,578 1,262 568 [1,505) (318) 545 55231
Plant and equipment 9,702 1,985 - (1,445} (150 - 7 10,158
Infrastructure 388,547 5235 26,402 (10,133} 2,800} a77 - 5038 413285
Work in progress 2422 5822 - . - - (652) (5754} 1837
455,243 14,303 B.570 {13.088) {3,267) a77 {652} - 480491
Summary of Work in Progress Opening WIP Additions Write-off Transfers  Closing WIP
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
Propery 75 621 (134) (514} 247
Plant and equipment 148 4 - {150} -
Infragtructure 2,00 5106 (518} [5.000) 1,580
Total 2471 5822 (652) [5.754) 1,837
{a) Property
Land-  Land-nen 0% :_.._“_n Heritage  Buldings - Buidings - non 59% aﬁsﬁﬁ.ﬁ Total Work h Total
specialised specialised Impro buildings specialised specialised Rulldings Wasio Buildings Progress Property
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 000
Al fair value 1 July 2019 1,883 8593 10476 177 41,613 - 537 1578 60,998 75 T.748
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 - - - (4.514) {10,835} 38} {1509} (16,896) - (16,896)
1,883 8593 10476 12755 30,778 453 69 44103 175 54,853
Movements in fair value
Additions E 335 335 ] 774 54 927 621 1,883
Revaluation 430 138 568 - - - - B 568
Disposal E {111 #11) (149) 113 (263) - (374)
Wiite-off E - - - - - - (134) [134)
Transfes - - - 48 {3,937 4158 79 646 (514} 132
430 352 792 6 935 4212 79 1310 (27} 2,075
in
Depreciafon and amorfisation {396} @2 {123} (15} (59) (1.505) (1,505}
Accumulated depreciation of disposals n n - - - 55 55
Revaluation - - - - - -
(369) (884 (123 {15) (58) 1448) (1,449}
At fair value 30 June 2020 233 8955 11.268 17 566 38,336 4212 537 1657 62309 47 73,84
Accumulaied depreciation at 30 June 2020 E . - [4,883) (11,719 123} (53} (1568) (18.345) . (18,345)
2313 8,955 11.268 12583 2%.618 41060 435 8 43964 M7 55,479
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() Plant and Equipment

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019

Maovements in fair value
Additions

Revaluation

Disposal

Wiite-off

Teansfes

Depreciafon and amorfisation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Revaluation

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulaied depreciation at 30 June 2020

Plant _ - . y
. Fixtwes fitings Computers and Work in Total plant and
38__!5 and and furnituse: felecomms Oer Progress equipment

equipment

F000 F000 000 000 S0 §000
15,808 138 1,904 1 146 18,706
(6,%05) 511 (1.443) - - (8.858)
8,903 el 452 11 145 9.848
1,858 - 127 - 4 1988
(322) (522)
. . il - (150} ()
1,336 - 198 - (148} 1,388
(1,230) (58) (161) (1.449)
i - - 2
(858) 158} (181} (1.077)
17,144 738 2102 m 20,084
(7.783] 1568} (1,604} - (9.936)
9,381 169 438 11 10.158
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(¢} Infrastructure

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulaled depreciation at 1 July 2019

Movements in fair value
Additions

Revaluation

Disposal

‘Wiite-off

Tansfes

Degreciafon and amorfisation
Accumulaled depreciation of disposals
Reassessment of useful ife
Revaluation

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020

Recreafional, Parks open
Roads Bridges msﬁmﬁ_“ Drainage  loisws and  spaces and g mgw...__.wa sﬂM gs“.ﬂ _is:ao“-s“ nﬂ“ﬂ. sgﬁn
community  streetscapes

000 $000 $000 $000 000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000 000 $000
47871 8172 16591 908 2306 2810 735 71777 2627 7 2,001 529939
(84,388 [4716) [2363) (16,985) [1,01) (1,726) [12416) (13939 (1,79) [15) - (139,391)
263 572 53455 12378 10322 1305 1084 75318 777 28 5 2,001 39058
4,45 03 5 12 18 7 8 5,19 10431
27,475 - - - - - - 21475
(5,625) {75} (19) {8} - (156) (38) - (5.918)

- - - - - - - - - (518) (518)
3,587 - 332 - 75 2 122 - 897 (5,080 (53)
7 393 7] 1 5 775 [ e [ 597 [@a12) a7
(7.496) (554) (357 (329 (82) (132) (458) (284 (428} 3 (10,133)
2,960 5 8 1 N B 110 3 B - 319

- - - - g a
(1,073 - - - - - - - - . (1073)
(5.,609) (549) (349) (326) 82) {132) (347) (263) 8 3 @)
377,783 58,500 17062 915 2,601 2852 890 21769 3324 7 1,589 561,356
(89,957 5,265) (2717 (17312 [1,103) (1,858) (12763) (14262) (1,251) [18) - (146,501)
287 807 53235 12,350 19603 1,498 %94 26,145 7507 2074 5 1,589 414854
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Acquisition

The purchase method of ting is used for all azquisitions of assets, being the far value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acquistion plus any incidental costs aftributable to the acquisiion. Fairvalueis the price that would be received to s2ll an asset (or paid i fransfer a
liabdity) in an orderly transacion between market participants at the measurement date

Where assets are constructed by Councll, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, bomowing costs incurred duning construcon,
and an appropriate share of directly atiibutable vanabie and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Councils policy, he threshold imits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable assetclass and unless othenwise
stated are consistent with the prior year.

Depreciation Period  Threshold Limit

Assst recognition thresholds and depreciation periods $000
Land & land improvements
land - 10
land improvements 25 years 10
Buidings
buidings 100 years 10
building improvements 10 years 10
leasehold improvements 540 years 10
Plant and Equipment
plant, machinery and equipment 10 years 10
fixtures, fttings and fumiture 10 years 10
computers and telecommunications 35 years 10
mofor vehices 25 years 10
Infrastructure
road pavements and seals 12-100 years 10
road formation and earthworks 100 years 10
road kerb, channel and minor culvers 80 years 10
bridges B80-100 years 10
footpaths and cycleways 8-50 years 10
drainage 100 years 10
recreational, leisure and community faciities 25years 10
waste management 36 years 10
parks, open space and strestscapes 25years 10

Land under roads

Councl recognizes land under mads it controls at fair value

Depreciation and amertization

Buidings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having imited useful lives are sysiematically depreciated over
their useful ives fo the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the senvice potential embodied in those assefs. Esimates of remaining
useful ives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes d annually. Depreciation rates and methods are
reviewed annually.

Waste management remaining useful life was re-assessed duning the year based on remaining space in constructed oells resulting in an adjusiment
fo accumulated depreciation (refer note 5.5)

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct useful ives
andresidual values and a separate depreciation rate i determined for each componert.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as nat having a limited useful life.

Straight ine depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as detemined each year.

Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated

Repairs and maintenance
Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an assetand the cost exceads the capitalisation threshold the costis capitalized and
depreciated. The camying value of the replaced asset is expensed.

Leasehold mprovements
Leasehold improvements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired perod of the lease or the estimated useful ife of the
improvement, whichever is the shorter.
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Valuation of land and buildings

‘aluation of buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer Bruce Phillips (Assetic Pty Ltd) in June 2018. Non Specidised land was
revalued this year using data from the Valuer General.

Specialised land is valued at fair value using a discounted average of land values across the shire. Specialised land was revalued this year using a
discounted average of data from the Vauer General.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these assets.
The date of the current valuation is detalled in the following table

Details of the Council’s land and buidings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as fliows:

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 DateofVal
Land - specialised - - 2313 Jun-20
Land - non specialised - 8,955 - Jan-20
Heritage buldngs - - 12,683 Jun-18
Buidings - specialised - - 26,618 Jun-18
Buidings - non specialisad - 4,080 - Jun-18
Leasehold Improvements - - 573 Jur-18
Total - 13,045 42 187
Valuation of infrastruc ture

‘aluations of sealed road has been determined in accordance with a independent valuation from Infrastructure Management Group. Valuation of
unzealed roads were completed internally with reference to the gravel road condition assessment manual.

The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table

The valuation is at fair value basad on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuafion

Details of the Council’s infrastructure and informafion about the fairvalue hierarchy as at 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Level 1 Level2 Level3  Dateof Valuation

Roads - - 287 807 Jun-20
Bridges - - 53235 Jun-17
Footpaths and cycleways - - 14,350 Jun-17
Dranage - - 19,603 Jun-14
R tional, leisure and ity faciities - - 1,498 Jun-14
Parks, open space and streefscapes - - 994 Jun-14
Kerb and Channel - - 26,145 Jun-18
Culverts and Retaining Walks - - 7507 Jun-17
Waste management - - 2,074 NA
Other infrastructure - - 53 Jun-20
Total - - 413,265

Description of significant unobsemvable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land and fand under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the

extentand impact of resfriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The extent and impactof restictions on use varies and resulfts in

areduction to surrounding land values of $5%. The markst value of land varies significantty depending on the location of fhe land and the cument
market conditions. Currently land values range between §7 and $80 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a deprecisted replacement cost fechnigue. Significant unobservable inputs include the cument replacement
cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Curentreplacement costs is calculated on a square metre basis and ranges from $2,250 o $2,600 per
square mefre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the cument condition of buildings and vary from 10 years fo 50
years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market condifions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful
lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either sharten o extend the useful lives of buidings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost
and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The ining useful lives of i ture assels are ¢ ined on the basis of the cument condition of
the assetand vary from 10 years b 100 years. Replacement cost is sensitive fo changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost
flowing through to e valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive fo changes in use, expectations or requirements that could eiter sharten
arextend the useful ives of infrastucture assets.

2020 2019
Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 $'000
Land under roads 2313 1,883
Total specialised land 2,313 1,883
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2020 2019
62 in iates, joint and $000 §000
(a) Investments in associates
Investments in associates accounted for by Me equity method are:
Corangamite Library Corporation 328 293
[+ i ional Library Comp.
Background
Council shares an interest in e Corang amite regional Bbrary corporation with the
Colac Otway Shire, Moyne Shire and Warrnambool Gity Councl. Councll’'s share
of fe invesiment in the lbrary is based on the census estimates of the
Ci Shire's kS of the total of e four
Councits. The equity share is based on the audied accounts for the year ended 30
June 2020. Corangamiie’s share as at 30 June 2020 i 17.86% (2018-2019
18.08%)
Fair value of Counci’s i tment in C ite R I Library iz 203
Corporation
Councils share of accumulated surplus/{deficit)
Councif's share of accumulated surplus{deficit at sian of year 282 198
Reporied surplus(defick) for year 35 8
Transfers (te} fom reserves - 55
Counci's share of accumulated surplus(deficit) at end of year 317 282
Council's share of reserves
Council's share of reserves at start of year 1 67
Transfers {to) Fom resarves - (56)
Council's share of reserves at end of year 1 1
Movement in carrying value of specific investment
Camying value of nvesiment at start of year 3 285
Share of surphus{deficit) for year 35 8
Carrying value of inwestment at end of year 328 283

Associates are all enfities over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint control. Invesiments in assodiales are

accounted forusing e equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Committees of management

AN entifies controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or Rabilifes, such as committees of management, have

been included in s financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Councll have been eiminated in full.
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2020 2019
Note 7 People and relationships No. No.
7.1 Council and key management remuneration
(a) Related Parties
Parent entity
Corangamite Shire Council is the parent entity.
Subsidianies and Associates
Interests in subsidiaries and associates are detailed in Note 6.2
(b) Key Management Personnel
Detais of persons holding the position of Councillor or other of key p atany time during the year are:
Councillors Mayor Neil Trotter
Councillor Jo Beard
Councillor Ruth Gstrein
Caouncillor Lesley Brown
Councillor Helen Durant
Councillor Simon lingworth
Caouncillor Wayne Oakes (ceased in March 2020 )
Total Number of Councillors 7 8
Andrew Mason, Chief Executive Officer
David Rae, Director Corporate and Community Sevices
Brooke Love, Director Works and Senices
lan Gibb, Director Sustainable Development (ceased in January 2020)
Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 4 4
Total Number of Key Management Personnel 1" 12
)R tion of Key M t P | 2020 2018
§ $
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Shortterm benefits M3 937
Long-term benefits 15 16
Post employment benefits 67 L]
Total €25 1,022
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any
related entities, fall within the following bands: 2020 2019
No. No
$10,000- §19,999 1 2
$20,000- §29,999 5 4
$40,000- §49,999 - 1
550,000 - §59,999 - 1
$60,000- $69,999 1 -
590,000 - $99,999 1 R
$160,000 - $169,999 1 -
$170,000 - $179,999 - 2
$180,000 - $189,999 1 1
$240,000 - §249,999 R 1
$250,000 - §269,999 1 -
1 12

(d) Senior Officer Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
4) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or

b) whose total annual remuneration excesds $151,000

Corangamite Shire Council has no Senior Officers meeting this definition (2019 - Nil)
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2020 2019
7.2 Related party disclosure §000 $000

(a) Transactions with related parties

During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties.
Counciller Related Party Nature of relationship

Nit

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in refation to
transactions with related parties

it

(c) Loans to/from related parties

The aggregate amount of loans in existence a balance date that have been made, quaranteed or
secured by the council to a related party as follows:

it

(d) Commitments tolfrom related parties
The aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made,
guaranteed or secured by the council to arelated party are as follows:

it
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.1 Contingent assets and labilites

(a) Contingent assets
Hi

Operating lease recelvables

The Coundl has entered inte commercial property leases on its property, esting of surplus freehold offk The e operaiing leases have
remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1and 10 years. All leases include a CP| based revision of the rental charge annually.

Future und d mini rentals receivable under non- operaing leases are as follows:
2020 2019
$000 §000
Not later than one year 53 60
Later than one year and not Later than five yeas 170 180
Later than five yeas a4 447
627 687

{b) Contingent liabilities
Confingent assets and contingent Kabiliies are not recognised in e Balance Sheet but are disclosed and if quanfifiable, are measured at nominal value. Confingent assets and Eabiities
are L e of GST recenable or payable, h

Superannuation

Councl has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make addifonal contribufions fo the scheme, matiers relafing fo this polential

obligation am oufined below.  As a result of he volaflity in financial markets he Eelihood of maki ch ity in fuly ods et
Fulure superannuation contibubons
In addition to the dscloced ibutions, C ite Shire Councl has paid unfi 1o \icion Super totalling SNl (2018-2019 $) There were no contributions

outstanding and no loans issued from o to the above schemes as at 30 June 2020. The expected contributions to be paid fo the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for fhe year
ending 30 June 2021 are $150,000

Landfill

Councl operates alandiill at Naroghid. Council willl have fo camy out furher site rehabilitation wodks in fhe future, however 1o current EPA il eachcell asitis
compleled. A provision is made for ongoing sil provision is maintained to cument EPA

Legal matters

A claim has been lodged relating 1o an accident on a Corangamite Shire road in August 2017. The claim wall be covered by insurance which has an excess of $10,000

Liability Mutual Insurance

Counci is {was) a participant of the MAV Lisbility Mutual Insurance (LM} Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public lsbility ional i ity . The LMI scheme
siates that each parficipant will rem ain liable to make further

contibutions to the scheme in regpect of any insurance year in which it was a parficipant 1o the extent of its parficipant’s share of any shorfallin fhe provision set aside in regpect of hat
insuance year, and such Eability will continue whether or not the partici pant remains a paricipant in fulwe insurance years.

(&) Guaraniees for loans to other entities

Guarantea - Camperdown Football Netball Club - Odginal Loan $100,000

The amount outstanding as at 30 June 2020 is $100,000 (2018 54

Guatantes is in respect of a koan from the Bendigo Bank

Security Deposit Guaraniee - Nafonal Austraka Bank

This guarantes has been in place since 3 February 1996 for $45,000

Contact Perk Guaranies - Dy of Natusal Ry and E

This guarantes has been in place since 24 March 1999 for $42 500

Security Deposil Guaranise - Wesipac Bank

This quarantes has been in place since 15 August 2007 for $100,000

Contact Perrmance Guaranise - Stale of Victoria - Environment Prodection Authority
This guarantee has been in place since 30 April 2008 for $728,000. The guarantee is in respect of remedi al acbion for the Corangamile Regional Landill at Naroghid
Contact F - City Council

This guarantee has bean in place since 2 Aprl 2019 for $25,000

The amount disdosed for i in tis note is th inal amount of th i that is e Council, not he fair value of he finandial quaraniee.
Financial g acks are not ised a5 a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised feir right to call on he guaraniee or Councll has ofher reasons to
believe fhat itis probable fat the right will be exercsed.
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8.2 Changein accounting standards
The followi AAS's have been issued that are not d: fuuuaomzezormmwm Council has assessed these pending standands and has identiied e foll swing
potential impacts will fow from e of i dards in fuly

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arangements: erm (AASB 1059) (applies 2020-2021 for LG Sector)

AASE 1059 add the for asenvice by agrantor that is a public sector enfity by ibang the for e from fhe granior's
perspective. It requires the grantor fo.
gnise a sefvice ion asset d, developed or acquired from a third parly by he operalor, inchuding an upgrade to an exdsting assel of the grantor, when fhe
granior controks e asset;
reclassify Esting asset {including i i a0 esed imangible assets and land under roads) as a service concession asset when it meets the
criteria for recognifion as a service concession asset,
initially measure a senice ion asset d, developed or acquired by th alor of reclas sified by th tor at cument repl costin with the cost
approach fo fair value in AASE 13 Fair Value M Sl to the initial it dassily of e asset, th L ion assetis d forin

accordance with AASB 116 Properly, Plant and Equipment n(MS.BiSEMarmﬂ.ssﬂs as appropriate, except a5 specified AASB 1059,

ding liability d initially at the fair value (current mpl cos) of he servi son asset, adusted for any ofher consideration between fie
l]mmﬂmnpummi
disck fficient infk 0 enabl of financial 1 e nature, amount, fiming and uncertainty of assets, Kabilifes, revenue and cash flows arising
from senice concession amangements

Based on e Councils cument assessment, there is expected to be no impact on the imnsacfons and balances ecognisedin e fnancial stalements as the Coundilis not a granior ina

SENIoe CONCESSIoN arangement.

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to A in . (applies 2020-2021 for LG Sector)

The Standard principally amends AASB 101 F ion of Financial and A4SE 108 ing Piicies, Changes i Accounting Estinaies and Eros. The amendments

refing the definition of material in AASE 101. The amendments darify fhe definifion of material and its ion by ding and aligning the definifon acsss AASE
and ofher publications. The impacts on e local sector ted Io be minimal,

AASB 20191 to . to the C: Framework (applies 2020-2021 for LG Sector)

This Standard sets out amendmants lo Australian A ions andother o refect the & the C F ¢k for Financial

Reporfing (Concepiual Framework) by the AASE. m-ruauswmludgwamnsmxe expecied i be minimal

8.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies
mthmwmdmmmmhmm ferm deposits, i vabl dudi fvables), payables huoci payables) and bank
[ i Details of the signi dicies and methods adopled, incleding fhe criteria for recognifion, the basis of measurement and he basis onwhich income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, inancial Eability and e-quity instrument is disclosed in fhe noles of the financial statements. Risk management is
camied oul by senior management under policies approved by e Council. These policies indude identificaion and analysis of fie risk exposure 1o Councl and appropriate procedures,
conols and risk minimisation.

[b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk fiat the fair value o fulure cash flows of cound financial insiruments will fluctuaie because of changes in market prices. The Councils exposure to market risk is
primarily theough intesst rate risk wath only insignificant exposum o ofher price risks and no exposure 1o foreion cumency sk,

Interest rate risk
Intarest raie risk refers 1o e risk hat the value of a inancial i of cash flows i i e i will fuctuate due o changes inmaket interest rates. Councls
muwm&iﬂwmkmsaspunxiﬂmmlnnglermlnmmibmmmsaliwilmwhdmmnsascmn{u\dmmwlmmk!mldmmnmldxwmuwbem
that d at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value inlerestrate rick. Cach flow inlerest mte risk is the risk that e futuse cach fows of a
will fuctuate b f changes in market inferest rates. Council has minimal exposure f cash flow interest rate risk frough its cash and deposits that are at feating
rates.
Investment of surphes funds is made with approved finandial institubons under the Local Act 1989 Cx ] inferest rate risk by adopling an investment policy that
NSRS
-diversification of investment product,
-monitoring of refurn on investment; and
f returng and. Eson with budget.
These has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, of ils obj , policies and for iy inferest rate rick or fhe methods used to measure thi risk from the

previous reporing period.
Inferest rale movements have not been sufficienty significant during fe year io have an impact on the Councls year end result.

[} Credit risk
Credit risk is he risk that a contracing entity willnot comglets is obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council 1o make a financial loss. Council have exposure 10 credit risk
on some financial assets includedin e bal; heet Parbculary significant areas of credit risk exist in relafon to cutstanding fees and fines as well as loans and receivables from
sporing chubs and associations.  To help manage his dgk:

-coundil have a policy for establishing credit limits for e enfities coundl deal with;

-coundl may require collateral where appropriaie; and

- coundil only invest surphus funds with iali whichhave a i it sfigdin counclls i policy.
Receivables consist of a lang bar of qxeadwnssmmapayu business and government seciors. Credit risk associaied with the councls financial assets is minimal
because the man debloris secured by a ch {he rataabh

There are no maierial financial assets which are indnidually determined to be impaired.
Councll may aleo be subject i credit risk for rans actions which are not included in fhe balance sheet such as when council provide a guarantee for another party. Detals of our
labilifes are disdosedin Note 8.1(t).

The maximum exposure 1 wredit ick at the reporiing date 1o recognised financial assets is the camying amount, net of any provisions for impainment of those assets, as disclosed inthe
balance sheet and noles to the finandal statements. Coundl does not hold any collateral.
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(d) Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk includes e risk that as a result of council's Bquidity 1 it will not h ifiicient funds i setle a ion wh ared of will be forced to sell a
financial asset at below value or may be unable © setfe or recover afinandal asset.

To helpreduce these risks Council:

-have a lquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents fo be maintained,

-have readily acceccible ctandby facilities and other funding arrangemente in place;

-have a lquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds o be invested within various bands of bquid instruments;

-monitor budget to actual parformance on a regular basis; and

-get imits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans 1o rale revenue and of b incipal to rat

The Coundls maimum exposure 1o Bguidity risk is the cannying amounts of financial Kabilities as disclosed on the face of he balance sheet and he amounts related 1o financial
quarantees disclosedin Note 8.1(c), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

These has been no significant change in Councils exposure, or s obj , policies and for ing Bouidity risk or fhe methods used fo measure this risk from the previsus
reporting period.

With fhe excaption of bomowings, all financial Eabilifies are expected fo be setfed within normal terms of rade.

Unlass ofhervise stated, the cannving amounts of financial instruments reflect fheir fir value.

(e} Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expeciations, economic forecasts, and d i f the finandial markets, Counci beleves the followang
movements am ‘reasonably possible’ over e next 12 months:

- & parallel shift of +0.5% and -0.5% in markel interest raies {AUD) from year-and rates of 1.0%.

These mevements will not have amaedal impact on the valuation of Council's financial assels and Rabdities, nor will they have a matenial impact on he results of Council's operations.
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8.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assets and Rablities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Councl's financial assets and Eablifies are measured at
amortised cost
Councll measures cerlain assels and Rabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounfing Standands. AASE 13 Fair value
measwement, aims 1o improve consistency and reduoe complexity by providing a definifion of fair value and a single sowrce of fair value me asuwement and

Bruse across A fian A
All assets and lablities for which fair value s measured or disdiosed in e financial stalements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy, described as
ollows, based on e lowest level input that ks signil to the fair valy as awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Rabilties

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which fie lowest level input that ks significant to fe fair value measurement ks directly or indirectly cbservabe; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which he lowest bevel input that ks significant to fhe fair value measwement is unobservable.

For e purpose of fair value di Councl has ined classes of assels and Bablifes on the basis of the nature, characieristics and risks of he
asset or Kability and e level of the fair value hier archy as explained above.

In addition, Councl determines whether transfers have cccumed between levels in te hierarchy by re-assessing caegorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revaluation

quent 1o the initial recognition of assets, non physical assets, other than plant and equipment, ate measured at their fair value, being fie
price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid i transfer a Rabiity) in an orderty Tansacfion between market pariicipants at the measwement daie.
Atbalance date, fve Council reviewed the camying value of the individual dasses of assets measured at fair value to enswre that each asset materially
approvimated its fair value. Where fhe carnying value materially differed from the fairvalue at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are d ined in vith a valuation hierarchy. Changes 1o the valuafionhierarchy will only eccur if an extemal change in
e resrictions of Bmitations of use of an asset result in changes 1o the permissible or practical Nighest and best use of the asset. In addition, Councll
underizkes a formal revaluaion of land, bulldings, and infrastructure assefs on a reqular basis ranging from 2 fo 5 years. The valuafionis performed efther
by ienced doficers or independent expert.

‘Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except io the extent hat an increment
reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case e increment ks recognised as revenue up

o the amount of the expense. i ane ksed as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation
reserve for hat class of asset in which case the decrement is taken 1o the reserve to fe exient of fie remaining increments. Within fie same class of
assets, fion and within the year are offset.

Impaimant of assefs

At each reperting date, the Councl reviews the camrying value of its assets to determine whe her there is any indication hat these asseds have been
impaired. If such an indicafion exisis, the recoverable amount of Mie asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less cosis of disposal and value in use,
Is compared to the assets camying value. Any excess of the assels carrying value over is ke amount ks exp d 1o the he income
siatement, unless e assetis camed at fe revalued amount in which case, fe impairment loss ks recognised directly against the revaluation suplus in
respect of the same class of assetto fe extent that e impairment loss does not excesed the amowntin the revaluation surphus for hat same class of
asset

8.5 Events occurring after balance date

No matters have cccumed after balance date hat require disclosure in the financial report.

8.6 Impact of COVID 19 demic on C ite Shire Council op: and 2019-20 financial report:

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared a giobal pandemic by the World Health Org anisation. Since then, various measwres have been iken by al
firee levels of Govemnment in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisks and measures iaken o mitigate it has had an impact on the
operafons of Corangamite Shire Council in the following areas for the financial e ar ended 30 June 2020:

+ In response 1o significant govemment directive amidst the COVID-19 oulbreak, some faclities were closed, including the Port Campbel Information
Centre, Sports Stadiums and Kilara Centre

» Corang amite S hire Council has offered rent relief under legisiative requirements or where it has been negofiated with tenants.

+ Councll has an active hardship policy and this has been utiised in response 1o COVIDI 8.

+ Council adopled a COVID-19 Economic Stimulus and Support Package Policy which included:

- Fee waivers - $380,000

- Empioyment - Council contribution of $1.4milion

- Infrastructure stimulus - $330,000

- Small business funding programs - $180,000

- Marketing and promoion campaign - $50,000

- Welfare and Sodalsupport - $100.000

Page 45



-

CORANGAMITE
SHIRE

AGENDA - MEETING OF COUNCIL 29 SEPTEMBER 2020

Corangamite Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019-2020 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note § Other matters

Share of increment
(decrement) on

Balance at revaluation of
beginning of Increment library books by Balance at end of
9.1 Reserves reporting period (d i) A iat rting period
(a) Asset revaluation reserves $oo0 $000 000 §'000
2020
Property
Land and land improvements 5,561 568 - 6129
Buidings 32,024 - - 32,024
37,586 568 - 38,153
Infrastructure
Roads 145,853 HBA0Z - 173,255
Bridges 46,303 - - 46,303
Footpaths and cycheways 14.788 - - 14788
Drainage 16,323 - - 16,323
Kerb and channel 22,897 - - 22887
Recreational, lekzure and community facilties 58 - - 58
Parks, open space and sireelscapes 26 - - 26
Culverts and retaining walls 5,288 5,288
Fumiture and equipment 4 i
Bus sheiters 1 1
252,678 26402 - 279,080
Total as set revaluation reserves 290,264 26 570 - 7233
2019
Property
Land and land improvements 6,046 (484) - 5,561
Buildings 32,024 - - 32024
38,070 [484) B 37 586
Infrastructure
Roatds 145,853 - - 146,853
Bridges 48,303 - - 46,303
Footpaths and cycleways 14,788 - - 14,788
Drainage 16.323 - - 16.323
Kerb and channel 22,857 - - 22,897
Recreational, letsure and community facilities 58 - - 58
Paris, open space and strestscapes bl - - piil
Culverls and retaining wals 5,288 - - 5288
Fumiture and equipment 4 - - 1M
Bus shelters 1 - - 1
252,678 - - 252678
Total asset revaluation reserves 290,748 (484) - 290,264
The asset revaluation reserve i used 1o record heincreased (net) value of Councif's assets over time.
Balance at Transfer from Transfer to
ginning of Balance at end of
reporting period surplus surplus reporting period
$000 $000 $'000 $°000
(b} Other reserves
2020
Open space developer contribuions 43 - 18) %
Land il re habiitation reserve 481 92 - 572
Superannuafion reserve 1,278 20 - 1,258
Infrastructure resene 6,085 400 {141) 6,324
Rural Councils Transformation Project reserve - 4,432 - 4432
Other reserves 213 126 83 5
Total Other reserves 8,180 5070 241) 13,008
2019
Open space developer contribuions &7 4 {28} 43
Land fll re habditation reserve 382 99 - 481
Superannuafion reserve 1,248 30 - 1278
Infrastructure reserve - 6,065 - 6,065
Rural Councils Transformation Project reserve - - - -
Other reserves 323 &4 (74 313
Total Other reserves 2,020 6,262 (102} 8,180
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2020 2019

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/|deficit) $'000 $'000
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 378 7212
Depreciation 13,088 12,923
Amaoriisation 479 -
Bad and doubtful debis 13 -
Finance costs - leases 99 -
[Profit)floss on disposal of property, i ture, plant and equi 3,028 4,584
Reassessment of useful life of waste assets (422)
Unrealised (gain)floss on investments 4
Fair value adjustments 201 -
Prior year WIP written off 652 -
Contributions - non monetary - (1,267)
Assets recognised for the first time - land recognised as controlled - (639)
Derecognition of assets - “7
Change in assets and Fabifties:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 1,227 (1.128)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 322 (424)
Increasel(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,044 (1,150
Increase/(decrease) in trust fund and deposits 19 (10)
Vdecrease in inventori 18 13
Increase/(decrease) in uneamed income 24 -
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (44) 348
(Increase)/decrease in Library Corporation (35) (28)
(Increase)/decrease in Intangible asset - (28)
Net cash provided byl(used in) operating activities 20,331 21,323
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9.3 Superannuation
Counci makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authonfes
Superannuation Fund {the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined heﬂeﬁ‘t each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for contnbutions to the Fund are lised as an in Comp: 0
Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/\ision Super Saver, receives both employer and employ

on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are nomally based on a fixed p tage of employ ings for the year
ended 30 June 2020, this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (S G} legislation.

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit cbigations under fhe Fund’s Defined Benefit category.
This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled mult-employer sponsored plan

There is no proportional spiit of the defined benefit Iahli‘tm assets or costs beb {he participat ployers as the defined
benefit obligation is a floating obligation bet the participati ployers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is
allocated to specific emplwets is when a call is made. As a result, he level of pammatmn of Corangamite Shire Councilin the

Fund cannot be dasap tag pared with other participati Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable
to allocate benefit liabilties, assets and costs bety ploy forthe purf ofAASB 119,

Funding arrangements

Counci makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund atrates determined by the Trustee on the
advice of the Fund Actuary.

A triennial actuarial review is cumently undenway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is expected to be
completed by 31 December 2020.

As at 30 June 2019, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit
category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Beneft category of which Corangamite Shire Council is a contributing
employerwas 107.1%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the \VBIs were:

Net investment retums 60% pa

Salary information 3.5% pa

Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa.
\fision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2020 was 104.6%.
The VB is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VB was above 100%, the 30 June 2019 interim actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial pesiion and that ne change was necessary
to the Defined Benefit category's funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions

Reguiar contributions

On the basis of the results ofthe 2017 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Councl makes employer
contributions te the Fund's Defined Benefit category atrates determined by fe Fund's Trustee. For te yearended 30 June
2020, this rate was 9.5% of members’ salaries (9.5% in 2018-2019). This rate will increase in line with any increases in the SG
contribution rate and reviewed as part of the 30 June 2020 triennial valuation.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of refrenchment above the
funded resignatien or refrement benefit.

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsafsfactory financial position atan actuanal investigafion or the Defined Benefit
category's VB is below its shortfall limit at any ime other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit
category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to puta plan in place so that the shortfall is fully
funded within three years of the shortfall occurring . The Fund monitors its VB en a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its
shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary detemmines that there is a shortfall based on the above requi t, e Fund’s participati
employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is app orioned bety the participati ployers based on the pre-1 July
1993 and post-30 June 1993 sewvice liabiities of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together with the employer's payroll at 30
June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due o the nature of the DDﬂt[amual itk the participati ployers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes
lifetime pensi and their ary beneficianies, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the sumplus cannot be retumed to the participati ployers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that
employers SUCcessor.
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The 2019 interim ial investig surplus
An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Coundil is a contributing employer.
Generally, a full actuanial investigation conducted every three years and interim ial investigations are conducted for each

intervening year. An intenm investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2019 and a full actuanal investigation was conducted as
at 30 June 2017.

The Fund's actuarial investigations identified the following forthe Defined Benefitcategory of which Council is a contributing
employer.

2019 2017
$m Sm
- A VBI Surplus 1513 £9.8
- A total service liability surplus 2334 193.5
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus 256.7 2288

The VBl surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested
benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to i they had all exited on 30 June 2019.

The ital service liabilty surplus means thatthe curent value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus
ted future contributi ds the value of ted future benefits and expenses as at30 June 2019.

The discounted accrued benefitsurplus means that the cumrent value of the assets in hie Fund's Defined Benefit category

exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service o 30 June 2019,

Counci was notified of the 30 June 2019 VBl during August 2019 (2018: August 2018).

The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation

A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2020. It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed by 31 December 2020.

The financial plions for the of this investigation are:

2020 Triennial 2017 Triennial
Net Investment Retum 56% pa 6.5%pa
Salary Infiation 2.50 % pa for the
first two years and 3.5% pa
2.75% pa thereafter
Price Inflation 20% pa 25%pa
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10 Change in accounting policy
Counci has adopted AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custorners , AASE 16 Leases and AASE 1058 hcome of Nat-for- Profit
Enfifies from 1 July 2019. This has resulied in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financid
shaements.
Due to the transition methods chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparative information throughout fiese financial
stalements has not been restated b reflect the requirements of the new standards except in relation fo contracts fhat were not complee
al 1 July 0019, The ransifion impact of these are detailed below.

a) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Impact of Adoption
AASB 15 Revenue from Canfracts with Custamers appbies 1o revenue transacions where Councl provides services or goods under
contractual arrangements

Counci adopted AASE 15 Revenue from Confracts with Custamers using the modified {cumulative calch up) method. Revenue for 2019
&5 reporied under AASB 118 Revenue is not adusted because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial apphicafion.
AASE 15 Revenue fram Canfracts with Custamers requires revenue from contracts with customers to be recognised as Council satisfies
the parformance obligations under the contract

b) AASB 16 Leases

AASE 16 Leases requires nghtofuse assets and related habilities for all lease agreements 1o be recognised on the balance sheet. The

of Ce Income & recognise the amartisation of the nght of use asset and the finance costs relating o
the lease. Councll has elected to adapt the modified {cumulatve calch up) method under the standard and as such has not adjusted 2019
disclosures. The transition impact of these are detaled below.

) AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profif Enfities applies to income received whese no confract is in place. This includes slatulory charges
(such as rates) as well as most grant agresments.

Counci adopted AASE 1058 Income of Nat-for-Profit Enfities using fhe modified (cumulative caich up) method. Income for 2019s not
adjusted, because the new standard is only appbed from the date of initial appbcafion.

AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profif Enfities requires income fo be recognised as Council satisfies the perfarmance obligations under
the contract.

d) Transition impacts

The: following table summarises the impact of transition to the new standards on retained eamings at 1 July 2019,

2019

$'000
Retained earnings at 30 June 2019 185,223
Revenue adjustment - impact of AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusfomers (4,500)
Retaned eamings &l 1 July 2019 R

Counc adopted the pracica expedient of deeming the lease asset o be equal in value b the lease abiity at 1 July
2019, As such there was no impact on refained earnings on fie adoption of AASE 16 Leases .

The following table summarises the impacts of transition to the new standards on Council's balance sheet for e year ending 30 June

2149

As reported Post adoption 1
30 June 2018 Adjustments July 2019
Ay $000 £000 £000
Right of use assets - 5800 5,800
B B0 SEOD

Liabilities
Uneamed income - operating grants - 4500 4,500
Lease liability - non-curment - 5800 5,800
- 10300 10,300
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Description of municipality

Corangamite Shire is located 180 kilometres south-west of Melbourne in the Great South
Coast. The municipality is approximately 4,600 square kilometres and stretches from
the Great Ocean Road in the south to the pastoral area of Skipton to the north.

The topography of the Shire is diverse, including flat plains in the north with large
numbers of lakes of international significance and volcanic cones in the centre of the
Shire. Highly productive agricultural land also characterises the north of the Shire with
sheep and cattle grazing prevalent. The coastline along the southern border includes a
section of the Great Ocean Road tourist route, attracting a large number of tourists
annually. Numerous offshore rock formations, including the Twelve Apostles, are a
major tourist attraction.

Geographically, Corangamite Shire comprises twelve townships that act as service
centres for the surrounding areas, namely Camperdown, Terang, Timboon, Port
Campbell, Cobden, Lismore, Derrinallum, Skipton, Princetown, Simpson, Noorat and
Darlington. The townships of Camperdown, Terang and Cobden have the largest
populations. The coastal townships of Princetown and Port Campbell predominantly
service the tourism industry.

In 2020, the estimated resident population of Corangamite Shire was 16,020 with 3.6
people per square kilometre. The population remains relatively stable with a projected
average annual growth rate of 0.2%.
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Sustainable Capacity Indicators

Results Results Results Results
Indicator/measure 2017 2018 2019 2020 Material Variations and Comments

Population
Expenses per head of municipal population $2,516.70 | $2,420.05 | $3,075.09 | $2,960.72
[Total expenses / Municipal population]
Infastructure per head of municipal population $26,293.06 | $28,014.73 | $27,673.79 | $29,434.24
[Value of infrastructure / Municipal population]
Population density per length of road 6.82 6.79 6.82 6.76
[Municipal population / Kilometres of local roads]
Own-source revenue
Own-source revenue per head of municipal population $1,675.39 $1,787.27 $1,863.97 $1,872.82
[Own-source revenue / Municipal population]
Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per head of municipal population $951.65 $763.83 $786.06 $807.41
[Recurrent grants / Municipal population]
Disadvantage
Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00
[Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage by decile]
Worforce turnover
Percentage of staff tumover 8.71% 11.16% 8.40% 6.65%

[Number of permanent staff resignations and terminations /
Average number of permanent staff for the financial year]
x100

Council experienced less turnover when compared to
the prior year, in particular retirements. Staff vacancies
also contributed to a lower result.

Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than:
(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above
“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"population" means the resident population estimated by council
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)

"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of

the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website
"Unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service Performance Indicators

Service/indicator/measure

Results
2017

Results
2018

Results
2019

Results
2020

Material Variations and Comments

Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation

Utilisation of aquatic facilities

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal population]

3.15

2.90

2.86

2.14

There was a significant difference in the number of
visitations to the pools in 2019-2020 in comparison to
2018-2019. Analysis shows that the weather played a

large part in the change, coupled with the COVID
pandemic.

Animal Management

Health and safely

Animal management prosecutions

[Number of successful animal management prosecutions]

New in 2020

New in 2020

New in 2020

100%

Food Safety
Health and safely

Critical and mafor non-compliance outcome nelifications

[Number of critical non-compliance outcome notifications
and major non-com pliance notifications about a food
premises followed up / Number of critical non-compliance
outcome notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises] x 100

100.00%

95.45%

100.00%

100.00%

Governance

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with council decisions

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council
has performed in making decisions in the interest of the
community]

61.00

64.00

65.00

63.00

Libraries
Participation

Active library members
[Number of active library members / Municipal population]
x100

13.39%

1291%

12.47%

12.86%
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Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
Participation

Participation in the MCH service 78.61% 84.78% 86.48% 89.11%
[Number of children who attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year) / Number of children enrolled in the MCH
service] x100
Participation
Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children 66.67% 8824% 81.82% 100.00% . .
Due to low numbers a large variance was triggered by
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH service only a small increase _:.Em :E:U.Q O ATSI children
) - . enrolled in the service.
at least once (in the year) / Number of Aboriginal children
enrolled in the MCH service] x100
Roads
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed local roads 37.00 37.00 44.00 41.00 Follow up questions from the customer survey
highlighted that dissatisfaction with sealed roads is
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council mainly directed to the condition of arterial roads, which
has performed on the condition of sealed local roads] are the responsibility of Regional Roads Victoria.
Statutory Planning
Decision making
Councif planning decisions upheld at VCAT 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
_ZE.:.Umq.oj___Or.,.ﬂ decisions ﬁ.:mﬁ did q._oﬁ .wm.ﬁ aside council's One VCAT appeal and Council decision upheld.
decision in relation to a planning application/ Number of
VCAT decisions in relation to planning applications] x100
Waste Collection
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill 63.94% 64.65% 63.11% 65.26%

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins] x100
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Definitions

"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person

"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library

"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose national language is not English

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of that Act
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act
"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an
authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"HACC program" means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered into for the purpose of the Home and Community Care Act 1985
of the Commonwealth

"HACC service" means home help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an
authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until school
age

"population" means the resident population estimated by council

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident" means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority
under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.
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F ial Performance |

Dimension/indicator/measure

Results
2017

Results
2018

Results
2019

Results

2021

Forecasts

2022

2023

Material Variations and Comments

Efficiency
Revenue level

Average residential rate per residential property assessment|

[Residential rate revenue / Number of residential property
assessments|
Expenditure level
Expenses per property assessment
otal expenses / Number of property assessments]

New in 2020

$4,175.44

New in2020

$3,995.59

New in 2020

$5,082.12

$2,063.41

$4.843.83

$2,096.04

$4.716.63

$2,120.00

$4,314.47

$2,165.27

$4,416.56

$2.213.98

$4,537.52

Liquidity
Working capital

Current assets compared to current fabilities
[Current assets / Current liabilities] x100
Unrestricted cash

Unrestricted cash compared to current liabiities

[Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities] x 100

296.41%

253.49%

366.45%

316.35%

602.57%

521.13%

350.02%

236.02%

388.79%

331.00%

330.86%

273.00%

307.52%

250.03%

278.42%

221.26%

The changes in accounting standards have resulted ina
large increase to current liabilities. This change now
requires Council to recognise future commitments for
leases and grants.

The changes in accounting standards have resulied ina
large increase to current liabilities. This change now
requires Counci to recognise future commitments for
leases and grants.

Obligations

Asset renewal and upgrade

Asset renewal and upgrade compared to depreciation
[Asset renewal and upgrade expense / Asset depreciation]
x100

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings compared to rates

[Interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue] x 100

Loans and borrowings repayments compared 1o rates
[Interest and principal repayments on interest bearing loans
and borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

Indebtedness

Non-current liabilties compared to own source revenue

[Non-current liabilities / Own source revenue] x100

New in 2020

11.03%

5.51%

21.06%

New in2020

0.00%

11.22%

12.38%

New in 2020

0.00%

0.00%

12.49%

93.20%

0.00%

0.00%

40.70%

115.46%

0.00%

0.00%

13.50%

110.07%

0.00%

0.00%

13.25%

96.61%

0.00%

0.00%

13.04%

137.73%

0.00%

0.00%

12.62%

The changes in accounting standards have resulted ina
large increase to non-current liabilities. This change now
requires Council to recognise future commitments for
leases and grants.
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Operating position

Adjusted underlying result

] . . The level of projects carried forward from previous years
Adjusted underiying surplus (or deficit] 5.55% B8.43% 5.93% -5.04% -6.09% 3.52% 2.72% 2.96% have negatively affected this measure. Similarly

. ) ) ) ) significant grant income also was received in the prior
[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit)’ Adjusted underlying year. Council also lost some income and incurred
revenue] x100 additional costs as a result of COVID-19
Stability
Rates concentration
Rates compared to adiusted underying revenue 46.89% 48.80% 40.96% 49.09% 51.85% 52.96% 53.26% 52.87% The 2018-2019 year was negatively affected by an

increase in grants received in that year. All previous and
[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue] x100 future years remain relatively stable
Rates effort
Rates compared to property values 0.43% 0.43% 0.43% 0.42% 0.40% 0.42% 0.42% 0.43%
[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of rateable
properties in the municipality] x100

Definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) nen-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)’ means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that retuns the service capability ofthe asset to its original capability
“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS

“current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS

“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets

"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilties

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan
"own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council including government grants

"population "means the resident population estimated by council

“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

“recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant

"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties

“restricted cash’ means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure
from the previous financial year

"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual
report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable
capacity, service performance and financial performance indicators and measures together
with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the
results. This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Loca/
Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the
council’s strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in
the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each
indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the
materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its
nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in
its strategic resource plan on 23 June 2020 and which forms part of the council plan. The
strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long
term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General
Purpose Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting
council.

2. Impact of COVID-19

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared a global pandemic by the World Health
Organisation. Since then, various measures have been taken by all three levels of
Government in Australia to reduce the spread of COVID-19. This crisis and measures taken
to mitigate it has had an impact on the operations of Corangamite Shire Council in the
following areas for the financial year ended 30 June 2020:

* Inresponse to significant government directive amidst the COVID-19 outbreak,
some facilities were closed, including the Port Campbell Information Centre, Sports
Stadiums and Killara Centre

» Corangamite Shire Council has offered rent relief under legislative requirements or
where it has been negotiated with tenants.

* Council has an active hardship policy and this has been utilised in response to
CoVID-19.

+ Council adopted a COVID-19 Economic Stimulus and Support Package Policy
which included:

- Fee waivers - $360,000

- Employment - Council contribution of $1.4million
- Infrastructure stimulus - $330,000

- Small business funding programs - $180,000

- Marketing and promotion campaign - $50,000

- Welfare and Social support - $100,000

Page 59



-

CORANGAMITE
SHIRE

AGENDA - MEETING OF COUNCIL 29 SEPTEMBER 2020

Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Adam Taylor, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated:

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Corangarnite Shire for the
year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and
results in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Cr Lesley Brown
Councillor
Dated:

Cr Helen Durant
Councillor
Dated:

Andrew Mason
Chief Executive Officer
Dated:
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